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Hoffman Drainage Tunnel
Clarysville
Private 19086

The Hoffman Drainage Tunnel was constructed between 1903 and
1906 by the Consolidation Coal Company to drain the bottom of the
Hoffman Mine (Mine No. 3), which at that time was the longest slope
mine in the country, 7100 feet. It runs from the lowest point
in the Georges Creek Coal Basin near New Shaft east to a point on
Preston's Run (commonly known as Braddock's Run), approximately %
mile north of Clarysville, a distance of 2 miles at a grade of .3551
per cent.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Hoffman Drainage Tunnel was constructed between 1903 and
1906 by the Consolidation Coal Company to drain the bottom of the
Hoffman Mine (Mine No. 3), which lies below the water line. It
runs from the lowest point in the Georges Creek Coal Basin near
New Shaft east to a point on Preston's Run (commonly known as
Braddock's Run), approximately ?; mile north of Clarysville, a
distance of 2 miles at a grade of .3551 per cent.l(See copy of
1928 Insurance Map). The tunnel is no longer intact. The only
visible portion of the tunnel is the outlet near Clarysville,
which has a concrete faced arched opening flanked by concrete
wing walls.

Just south of the tunnel outlet are ruins of stone abutments
which once supported a bridge that carried the C & P Railroad over
Preston Run.

1
Maryland Geological Survey, Second Report on the Coals of Maryland,

(Baltimore: The Johns Hopkins Press, 1920), p. 170,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Hoffman Drainage Tunnel, completed in 1906, is significant
as a historic engineering feat. It successfully drained the bottom
of the Hoffman Mine slope, which at the time was the longest slope
mine in the country, 7100 feet. An auxiliary tunnel, % mile long
was driven to connect the drainage system of the southern portion
of Consol's property with that of the northern, These two systems
included: the Midland Drainage Tunnel (1887), (See AL-VI-B-257),

.10 mile long and a .6 mile long ditch which drained the southern

end and the Allegany Water Ditch (1881), (See AL-V-A-273), .8 mile long
which, drained the northern end. These tunnels and ditches combined
with the Hoffman Drainage Tgnnel drained the entire property of the
Consolidation Coal Company.

S. Graff Haverstik was one of Consol's engineers that was
instrumental in the design of the tunnel. The Jenkins family,
a local family, supervised the construction. It was begun in four
sections which were driven towards each other.

During the time of construction and afterwards the tunnel was
forbidden territory for all of Consol's coal miners. Bathouses
were provided at New Shaft for only those men that worked on the
tunnel, other miners were not permitted this benefit.

2

Ibid.
3

Anton Urbas, Vale Summit, MD. Interview October 22, 1982.
4

Philip Jenkins, Frostburg, MD. Interview December 10, 1980.
5

Urbas, 10/22/82.
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HOFFMAN DRAINAGE TUNNEL
AL-V=-A-053
West side of Route 55, Clarysville
ca. 1903

In 1903 the Consolidation Coal Com-
pany undertook the construction of a drain-
age tunnel to facilitate drainage in the
Hoffman Mine. The tunnel took three years
to complete and runs through Hoffman slope
discharging water into Braddock Run. The
water is carried through bored counduits
four to six feet in circumfrence for a dis-
tance of one mile. A cement face with the
dates 1903 - 1906 carved on it has been

placed over the mouth of the tunnel.
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
— EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED XUNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
__GOOD XRUINS —ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Hoffman Drainage Tunnel is located on the west side of Route
55 just south of Clarysville.

The Hoffman Tunnel was used to drain water from the Hoffman Mines.
The tunnel was two miles in length and was supported by wooden beams on the
interior. A cement face was added to the entrance of the tunnel in the
early 20th century.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Hoffman Mine had long had problems with poor ventilation and
drainage which resulted in a2 disease the miners called "black damp." In
1885, the first ventilating fan was installed »y Consolidation Coal Com=
pany in its Hoffman Mine.1 While this alleviated the ventilation problem
somewhat, it did nothing to facilitate drainage and thereby keep the miners
from standing in pools of water while they worked. "A structural lag in
the strata beneath ths Hoffman mines had frequently resulted in water ac-
cunulating to a depth of one and a half feet in some of the active shafts."?Z
In 1903 the Consolidation Coal Company undertook the construction of a
drainage tunnel to correct the condition. The tunnel took thre2 years to
complete and ran through Hoffman slope discharging water into Braddock Run
in Clarysville. Water was carried through bored conduits four to six feet
in circumfrence over a distance of one mile.

Although the tunnel 18 in poor condition, and the Hoffman mine is no
longer in use, water is still transported from one side of Hoffman slope
to the other.

1 Katherine A. Harvay. The Best Dressed Miners (Ithaca, N.Y.: Cornell
University Press, 1969) p. 45

2 Harry Stegmaier, Jr. Allegany County - A History (Parsons, West Va.:
McClain Printing Company, 1976) p. 227

3 ibid p.227
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ADDENDUM

L Brief History

The Hoffman Drainage Tunnel

The Hoffman Drainage tunnel was an engineering triumph of its age. Built in the period
1903 through 1906, it was hand-driven through solid rock for 2 miles to provide an outlet
for water that was flooding the coal mines. The water had proven to be too much for the
steam pumps, and coal production was stagnating. After an engineering survey of the
turrel project by the Consolidation Coal Company, a contract was let to Mr. Phillip
Jenkins, Sr. of Wales. Work was begun from both ends in November of 1903 by Jenkins’
four sones, William, Edward, James, and Phillip, Jr.

This work was different from coal mining. The Jenkins crew were familiar with
hard rock mining from their native Wales. To speed progress, a shaft was sunk 181 feet
deep inside Hoffman Mine number 3. From the bottom of this, the men dug in both
directions, giving 4 working faces.

The tunnel proceeds in a straight line, except for an 18 degree turn located some
400 feet from the east (exit) portal. The tunnel is a uniform 8 feet in height and width,
and follows a downgrade of some 1/3 percent. This put the exit 40 feet lower than the
drainage area in the mine, but more than adequate for adequate flow. The excavation
work proceeded in three shifts per day, involving blasting through hard rock. Working
conditions were described as “wretched” due to the cold water seepage. The men worked
in rubber waders. A pump was added near the exit, at the horseshoe curve of the Eckhart
Branch of the C&P railroad, to help control the flow. The miners used lard oil lamps for
illumination. Drilling for the blasts was done by hand, with a three man crew. The
excavated rock was removed through Hoffman number 3 mine, and dumped on the slate
banks.

Later, a mule was lowered into the central shaft, and served there for 6 months.
William Jenkins was in charge of the dynamite, and his brother James was supervisor of
the digging. They stayed in the nearby Clarysville Inn while the work was proceeding.
During the dig, there were only 2 accidents, and only 1 man died. The project cost
$300,000.

The tunnel was punched through on Saturday, July 21, 1906 at 9 pm. It was found
to be off by less than three inches. The Frostburg Mining Journal of Setp. 15, 1906,
proclaimed, “The Great Work Complete.” Inside the mines, the pumps were silenced, and
gravity took over to lower the water level. It is estimated that 9,000,000 gallons of water
were drained in 24 hours.

The impact on the coal workings was immediate. A tremendous amount of coal,
previously inaccessible, was now available. Over 50 additional men were working the
coal. In addition, conditions in the mines improved. Thirteen miles of mine drainage
ditches fed the tunnel. Observers noted in the Cumberland News of 1906 that the volume
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of water carried by Braddock Run was ten times greater, with 2 months of the tunnel
opening. The red coloration and the odor of sulfur was noted as far downstream as Wills
Creek in the Narrows.

Tunnel maintenance was maintained until about 1953. The mines stopped
working around 1960. As of February 2000, the concrete portal arch at the east or
drainage end is still standing. The overburden upstream for some 30 meters is gone, and
some timbering can be seen in the stream bed. The water seems to emerge upward from
the end of a blind canyon, and flow through the arch. The inscription on the arch can still
be clearly read: “1903-1906, Hoffman Drainage Tunnel, Length 2 miles.”

The east end of the tunnel, with 1ts associated concrete arch is located next of one
of the bridge abutments that carried the C&P horseshoe curve over the creek at that point.
The water flow in Feb. 2000 was quite brisk, with no obvious smell of sulfer, but with a
decided red tinge to the water.
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